UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.
GENERAL

Economic and Social
Council

E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
23 April 1999

Original: ENGLISH

COW SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS
Fifty-fifth session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 45t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 20 April 1999, at 3 p.m

Chai r person: Ms. ANDERSON (I'reland)

CONTENTS
PROMOTI ON AND PROTECTI ON OF HUMAN RI GHTS:
(a)  STATUS OF THE | NTERNATI ONAL COVENANTS ON HUMAN RI GHTS;
(b)  HUMAN RI GHTS DEFENDERS;
(c) | NFORVATI ON AND EDUCATI ON;
(d)  SCIENCE AND ENVI RONMENT ( conti nued)

ORGANI ZATI ON OF THE WORK OF THE SESSI ON (conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public meetings of the Comr ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 99- 12595 (E)



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3 p.m

PROMOTI ON AND PROTECTI ON OF HUMAN RI GHTS:
(a)  STATUS OF THE | NTERNATI ONAL COVENANTS ON HUMAN RI GHTS;
(b)  HUMAN RI GHTS DEFENDERS;
(c) | NFORVATI ON AND EDUCATI ON;
(d)  SCIENCE AND ENVI RONVENT

(agenda item 17) (continued) (E/ CN. 4/1999/52 and Corr.1 and Add.1, 86-88, 89
and Add. 1, 90-92, 116, 122, 138 and 139; E/ CN.4/1999/NGJO 9, 38, 63 and 78)

1. Ms. AQUILINA (Qbserver for Malta) said that the establishnent of the
International Crimnal Court was a milestone in the effort to strengthen human
rights worl dwi de. Peace and prosperity could not be enjoyed w thout ful
respect for human rights under a denocratic system of government. 1In Mlta,
the Constitution and Constitutional Court ensured full protection of human
rights and the European Convention for the Protection of Human Ri ghts and
Fundanment al Freedons had been incorporated into domestic |aw

2. Her del egation supported the position of the European Union on the
abolition of the death penalty and believed that human rights educati on was
one of the nost inportant ways of strengtheni ng gl obal awareness of human
rights. In that connection, she commended the Hi gh Comm ssioner's report on
public information activities in the field of human rights (E/ CN. 4/1999/86).
She expressed support for the efforts of the Secretary-General to integrate
human rights activities at Headquarters and in the field and wel coned the
participation of the H gh Comr ssioner in the work of the four main Executive
Conmi ttees.

3. Ms. RAHAM MOFE (Cbserver for Israel) said that, while technol ogical and
scientific progress had led to a greater understanding of the world, that
know edge nust be applied responsibly. |In 1998, her Governnment had enacted

| egi slation to prevent the cloning of human bei ngs and the genetic

nmodi fication of reproductive cells. The law in question provided for a
five-year noratoriumon certain types of genetic intervention, during which
time the noral, legal, social and scientific inplenmentation of such activities
were to be studied by an advisory comrttee.

4, In 1996, the Israeli Parlianent had enacted a | aw on patient's rights
whi ch set out the right to receive nedical treatnent in accordance with

nati onal |aw and custom and prohibited the w thhol di ng of medi cal treatnent
and discrimnation between patients; it also entitled patients to information
about their condition, protected their privacy and required patient consent
for nedical procedures. Parlianent was currently considering a bill on the
confidentiality of genetic information.

5. M. DRAGANOV (Cbserver for Bulgaria) said that no executions had taken
place in his country since 1989 and a noratorium had been inposed in 1990.
Thus by the second half of 1999, Bulgaria would have noved fromthe group




E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 3

of retentionist countries listed in the Secretary-Ceneral's report
(E/CN. 4/ 1999/52, para. 25) to the list of de facto abolitionist countries
(idem. In fact, however, on 10 Decenber 1998, Parlianent had anmended the
country's penal code by abolishing the death sentence for all crinmes, thus

pl acing Bulgaria on the Ilist of totally abolitionist States. The sentences of
the nearly two dozen convicts who had been on death row since 1990 had been
comuted to life inprisonment by a special presidential decree. Bulgaria had
al so signed the Second Optional Protocol to the International Covenant on
Cvil and Political Rights and Protocol No. 6 to the European Convention for
the Protection of Human Ri ghts and Fundanental Freedonms, and was in the
process of ratifying both instrunents.

6. Hi s del egati on, which was a sponsor of the draft resolution on the death
penalty, agreed with the conclusion in the Secretary-General's report that
executions did not provide for |less violent societies but tended further to
brutalize and escal ate social conflicts. It was alarm ng that the death
penalty continued to be inposed in some countries in circunstances that
violated the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights and the
Convention on the Rights of the Child. He urged all States parties to the
Covenant to accede to its Second Optional Protocol and all countries that

still maintained the death penalty to inpose it only for the nost serious
crinmes.
7. M. KHORRAM (Observer for the Islam c Republic of Iran), having noted

that the Vienna Progranmre of Action requested the Secretary-General to open a
di al ogue with States that had not yet ratified core international human rights
treaties, said that the relevant organs of the United Nations should establish
mechani snms to facilitate discussion anong the Menber States, intergovernnmenta
bodi es and non-governnental organizations (NGOs) to identify obstacles to
ratification and ways of overcomng them To that end the organi zation, with
United Nations assistance, of national, regional and subregional sem nars and
conferences woul d be useful.

8. In addition, there were a nunber of countries whose ratification of

i nternational instruments would, in their own view, be inconsistent with their
nati onal |egislation and cultural values. The provision of a forumfor an
exchange of views and grass-roots dial ogue that would make it possible to
consider cultural particularities mght greatly facilitate accession by such
St at es.

9. Unfortunately, many States encountered difficulties in inplenenting
human rights instruments, particularly the International Covenant on Econonmic
Social and Cultural Rights, because of unilateral coercive neasures taken by
certain States in violation of international |aw and the Charter of the
United Nations. The relevant treaty bodies shoul d address that issue and

di scourage States from pursuing such policies and practices.

10. M. BUSDACHI N (Transnational Radical Party) said that, at the
forty-ninth session of the General Assenbly, a draft resolution on abolition
of the death penalty had been defeated by only seven votes. In the neantine,
a nunber of parliaments around the world had revised their penal codes to




E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 4

elimnate or suspend the death penalty, and the Statute of the Internationa
Tri bunal for the Former Yugoslavia had forbidden the sentencing to death of
war crimnals.

11. The draft resolution on the death penalty on which the Commi ssion was to
deci de had been sponsored not by individual States but by the European Union

a fact that enhanced the likelihood of its adoption. However, rather than
speci fying categories of persons to whomthe death penalty should not apply
the draft resolution should call for its total abolition. It should also cal
upon the General Assenbly to adopt a resolution inposing a worl dw de
noratori um on executions as a crucial step towards the abolition of capita
puni shment .

12. Ms. SMTH (Wrld Alliance of Refornmed Churches) said that capita

puni shment was i nposed as part of an intellectually di shonest canpaign that
professed to be addressing crinme w thout deliberating its causes or
consequences. She was pleased to note that the Commr ssion was once again to
consider a draft resolution calling for a suspension of executions with a view
to the conmplete abolition of the death penalty, and she urged all States to
observe that noratorium which would allow countries that still inposed the
death penalty to consider its political, ethical and theological inplications.

13. The death penalty was a human rights issue and the epitone of a hate
crinme; it reflected a throw away society that deprived the poor of due process
and equal protection. Rather than offering forgiveness and opportunities for
reconciliation and redenption, societies that executed offenders nerely

per petuat ed vi ol ence. Moreover, the healing of fam |y nenbers of nurder
victinms was a process that was short-changed by such sinple solutions as the
death penalty. Executing nurderers sinmply dimnished the value of the
victims.

14. M. LITTMAN (Christian Solidarity International) said that the probl ens
of ratification of and conpliance with the International Covenants on Human

Ri ghts arose also in the case of other international conventions. Sone States
signed and ratified those instruments wi thout any intention of respecting
their comm tnents under them His organization would continue to speak out
and draw the international comunity's attention to failures to inplenment

bi ndi ng i nstruments. He urged the Conmmi ssion and the Hi gh Conmm ssioner to do
i kewi se, particularly through their public information activities.

15. M. RAJKUMAR (Pax Romana) said he was deeply concerned

that 88 countries, continued to apply the death penalty. Hi s organization
woul d support the worldw de noratoriumon the death penalty in the year 2000
and urged the Turkish authorities to observe the noratoriumin respect of the
Kurdi sh | eader, M. Ccal an, as requested by the Council of Europe. He w shed
to point out that the Philippines should not have been listed as a de facto
abolitionist country in the Secretary-General's report (E/ CN.4/1999/52).

16. The protection of human rights defenders nust be a fundanental part of
the Comm ssion's work. His organization was famliar with the harassnment of
human rights defenders, as it had suffered the loss of two of its em nent



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 5

menbers in Haiti and Guatemala. |In connection with the latter case, it
wel coned the invitation by the Governnent of Guatemala to the Specia
Rapporteur on the independence of judges and |lawers to visit that country.

17. Ms. BROMN (Human Rights Watch) wel coned the adoption by the

CGeneral Assenbly at its fifty-third session of the Declaration on Human Ri ghts
Def enders. Since then, events around the world had highlighted the inportance
of the Declaration: human rights |awers and nonitors had been killed,
persecuted and punished in many countries, and there were countries in which
wor k on human rights issues was considered illegal. She therefore urged the
Commi ssion to appoi nt a new special rapporteur to nonitor the inplenmentation
of the Declaration.

18. M. MEJIA (Wrld Oganization agai nst Torture), speaking also on
behal f of the International Federation of Human Ri ghts Leagues, called upon
the Governnent of Pakistan to take steps to ensure the safety of the Specia
Rapporteur on extrajudicial, sumary or arbitrary executions agai nst whom
threats had been made. Such threats exenplified the fact that, in tota

di sregard of the obligations and comritnents entered into by States, many
countries, individuals, groups and private entities were wagi ng war on
human rights defenders and their organizations.

19. The work of the Observatory for the Protection of Human Ri ghts

Def enders, established in July 1997 by the two organi zati ons he was
representing, showed how grave and w despread was the viol ence agai nst human
rights defenders. The organization's witten statenment (E/ CN. 4/1999/ NGO 115)
referred to nore than 200 cases in some 40 countries, including sumuary or
extrajudicial executions, torture, illegal or arbitrary detention, judicia
persecution and violation of the right to a fair trial. In the period between
Decenber 1998 and 15 April 1999, human rights defenders had been killed in

Col onbi a, Ecuador, Guatemala, Haiti, the Islam c Republic of Iran and the
United Kingdom Several human rights defenders attending the Comm ssion's
current session would be in serious danger on their return to their countries.

20. Ef fective inplenentation of the Declaration on the Right and

Responsi bility of Individuals, Goups and Organs of Society to Pronote

and Protect Universally Recogni zed Human Ri ghts and Fundamental Freedons
woul d strengthen the rights and comm tnent of those working to ensure
respect for human rights, but 26 States had entered reservati ons concerning
the Declaration. The Comm ssion, the United Nations and the internationa
comunity in general should ensure the protection of human rights defenders
and pronote and nonitor the inplenmentation of the Declaration. To that

end, the question of human rights defenders should be included in al

United Nations proceedings relating to human rights; a special unit or
focal point dealing with human rights defenders should be established in
the O fice of the H gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights (OHCHR); and a

speci al rapporteur on human rights defenders shoul d be appoi nted.

21. Ms. MARTIN (Ammesty International) said that the fact that the
Convention on the Rights of the Child had been ratified by all countries
except Somalia and the United States of Anerica clearly denonstrated the

i nternati onal consensus agai nst sentencing to death or executing anyone for
crimes conmtted when under 18 years of age. Although the laws in a nunber of



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 6

countries still permtted it, only six countries had, since 1990, carried out
executions of people who had been bel ow 18 years of age at the time of the
crime. Those countries were the Islamc Republic of Iran, Nigeria, Pakistan
Saudi Arabia, the United States of America and Yenen. Five of those countries
had acted in clear violation of their obligations under the Internationa
Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, the Convention on the Rights of the
Child, or both.

22. The country which had carried out by far the hi ghest nunber of
executions of persons under 18, and which continued to do so, was the

United States of Anerica. |In order to continue inposing the death penalty

on such persons, the United States of Anmerica had entered a reservation to
article 6 of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, despite
the fact that no State was permtted a derogation fromthat article under any
circunstances. In 1995, the Human Rights Committee had stated that the
reservati on was inconpatible with the object and purpose of the Covenant.

The United States of Anerica had nevertheless turned a blind eye to the
Committee's injunction to withdraw the reservation, and had since then
executed four nore juvenile offenders.

23. The resol uti on adopted by the Commission at its fifty-fourth session had
al so urged all States to observe the 1984 Econom c and Soci al Counci

saf eguards guaranteeing the protection of the rights of those facing the death
penalty. Those safeguards prohibited the execution of persons who had becone
i nsane or who were suffering fromnental retardation or extrenely limted
ment al conpetence. The United States of Anerica ignored that el ementary
princi ple and continued to execute such people. [Its Supreme Court had even
ruled that it was not unconstitutional to apply the death penalty to the
mental |y retarded.

24. Her organization called on the Commi ssion to adopt a resolution urging
all States to halt the practice of inposing death sentences on and carrying
out executions of persons who had conmitted crimes when younger than 18 and of
persons suffering fromnmental retardation or insanity.

25. Ms. BRAZON (I nternational Educational Devel oprment, Inc.) described how
her organization and its nmenbers and affiliates had suffered in the course of
def endi ng human rights and humanitarian | aw. She had herself been decl ared
persona non grata by the Mexi can Government, while another fenmale nmenber of
her organi zati on had been arrested, sexually assaulted and expelled from

Mexi co. Her organization continued to experience difficulties bringing
representatives to the Comm ssion and Sub- Conmi ssion from | ndi an-occupi ed
Kashm r, and always feared for the lives of those persons when they returned
hone. |Its delegate to the forty-seventh session of the Sub-Conm ssion had
been contacted with a viewto his attendance at the forty-ei ghth session, but
a few days later his body had been found.

26. Her organization had great difficulty finding attorneys in Hawaii who
were willing to defend cases in which supporters of the royal famly had been
assaul ted and abused by the police, many attorneys being intimdated by what
they feared woul d be court-inposed sanctions or even di sbarnment. Her

organi zation's representatives in the Ml uccas were under extreme pressure.
The Kurdi sh question in Turkey had taken a huge toll of human rights



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 7

defenders: people interviewed by representatives of her organi zation during
its mssion to Turkey had subsequently been arrested, tortured or killed.
Turkey was currently holding the | eader of the Kurdish Wrkers' Party (PKK),
M. Ocal an, who was legally entitled to prisoner-of-war status; the | awers
representing hi mwuld need the support of human rights groups to protect
their owm |lives as well as his.

27. Her organi zation urged the Comm ssion to take decisive action to protect
human rights defenders. 1In the absence of a special rapporteur, other
rapporteurs and working groups should initiate reviews of the situation of
human rights defenders within their own mandat es.

28. Ms. PICKRELL (Friends Wrld Committee for Consultation (Quakers)),
speaki ng al so on behalf of the International Conm ssion of Jurists, said that
it was universally agreed that a Government coul d, under no circunstances,
legitimately ignore its obligations to pronote and protect the human rights
of those within its jurisdiction, although there were circunstances in which
it mght restrict or Iimt some of those rights. 1In the context of the
declaration of a state of war or other emergency threatening the life of the
nation, a State m ght derogate from sone of the provisions of certain human
rights treaties, although only to the extent strictly required by the

exi gencies of the situation and not if such a derogation would be inconpatible
with its other international obligations. The international response to such
decl arations and derogati ons had hitherto been inadequate and a carefu
scrutiny by independent outside bodies was desirable.

29. The establishment in the near future of the International Crimnal
Court, with the broadest geographical scope, would be a breakthrough in nmaking
the protection of human rights a reality, and her organization therefore urged
all States to become parties to its Statute at the earliest opportunity.

30. As clarity regarding the nature and scope of the applicable | aw

i ncreased, the question of inplenentation becane crucial. Her organization
was particularly concerned about the many abuses of human rights by infornma
armed forces and armed groups, and insofar as such groups were established or
condoned by a Governnent, the responsibility for themand their actions

remai ned governnental. Nevertheless, too little attention was currently being
paid to themand their activities and to ensuring that Governnents were held
accountabl e for their actions.

31. M. POPOVIC (Earthjustice Legal Defense Fund), referring to the report
of the Secretary-General on pronotion and protection of human rights: science
and environment (E/ CN. 4/1999/89), said that the Commi ssion on Human Ri ghts had
a responsibility to address the human rights aspects of Agenda 21. There had
recently been a nunber of relevant devel opnents in international and domestic
law. In June 1998, the Econom ¢ Commi ssion for Europe had opened for
signature the Convention on Access to Information, Public Participation in
Deci si on- maki ng and Access to Justice in Environmental Matters (ECE/ CEP/43),
which explicitly recogni zed that adequate protection of the environment was
essential to human well-being and the enjoynent of basic human rights. The

I nter-American Comr ssion on Human Ri ghts had recognized, in a report on the
human rights situation in Ecuador, that environnental degradation of the |ands
of indigenous peoples for the purpose of oil exploration inplicated a range of



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 8

human rights including the right to health, the right to information and the
right to public participation. The European Court of Human Ri ghts had issued
two judgements recogni zing the human rights inplications of environnenta
pol I uti on.

32. The nunber of national constitutions that recognized sonme form of right
to a healthy environnent and/or a Government's duty to prevent environnenta
harm had risen to 99. 1In the United States of America, human rights lawsuits
had been brought against companies in connection with oil exploration in
Ecuador, the construction of a gas pipeline in Myanmar and mning in

I ndonesia. O -devel opment activities continued to fuel human rights
violations in north-east Colonbia and Nigeria. Native Americans and

other minorities in the United States of America continued to bear a

di sproportionate share of the burden of environnental hazards. Construction
of the Three Gorges Dam was goi ng ahead in China with massive disruption to
the surroundi ng natural and cultural heritage.

33. Hi s organi zati on supported the recommendati on that the Conm ssion should
convert the mandate of the Special Rapporteur on illicit novement and dunping
of toxic waste into that of a special rapporteur on human rights and the

envi ronnent .

34. Ms. TANAKA (International Mvenent against Al Fornms of Discrimnation
and Racism said that, in nmost countries of the Asia-Pacific region, there was
a noticeable | ack of human rights education. A conference on the subject,
hel d in Novenmber 1998 under the auspices of OHCHR, had been attended by nore
than 150 participants. It had considered 13 country reports and di scussed
human rights education strategies in the context of globalization, human

ri ghts empowernment for the oppressed, and human rights training for NGOs,

busi ness | eaders and those engaged in the adm nistration of justice, and had
culmnated in the adoption of a Declaration containing a nunber of
recomendati ons.

35. The Decl aration stated that it was essential to learn fromthe reality
of human rights violations; that human rights educati on should be relevant to
the lives and realities of comrunities; that Governments should provide human
rights training for mlitary forces, |aw enforcement officers, prison
officials, inmmgration and border officials, nmenbers of |egislative bodies and
| ocal authorities; and that professional groups, particularly journalists and
menbers of the nedical and | egal professions, should take responsibility for
enhanci ng human rights awareness anong their nmenbers and ensuring that their
conduct conformed to human rights standards.

36. Ms. SANJUR (Conmmi ssion for the Defence of Human Rights in Centra
America) said that her organization was concerned that there were still many
cases of intimdation of human rights defenders in Central Anerica. On

16 April 1999, three arned individuals had broken into the house of the
Executive Director of the Ofice for Human Rights of the Archbishopric of
Guatemal a on the occasion of the first anniversary of the nurder of

Bi shop Juan Gerardi, Coordinator of the Ofice

37. The international community must keep a vigilant eye on the physica
safety of human rights defenders around the world. Onbudsnen shoul d be



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 9

aggressive in asserting human rights in Central Anerica but their budgets were
approved by legislatures and, if they had problens with the executives, it was

likely that the legislatures would refuse to approve the budgets. It was
essential, therefore, that they should be nore independent of the executive
and the judiciary if they were to acquire greater credibility. It was also

i nportant that the Central Anmerican Governnents shoul d have a broader view of
their role and provide themw th greater econom c support.

38. Ms. SHARFELDDIN (International Organization for the Elimnation of Al
Forms of Racial Discrimnation) said that the atrocities commtted agai nst the
Pal estinian people and the horrific treatnment of the people of the Bal kans
made one wonder about the effectiveness of international |aw. The right of
veto given to the super-Powers by the Charter of the United Nations was

i ntended to prevent acts of aggression by the strong agai nst the weak, but
such acts were being comritted every day, threatening international peace in
violation of international |aw and Security Council resolutions.

39. One of the causes of the problens facing the world was the mass nedi a,
whi ch nore often than not used subjective information from questi onabl e
sources and i nposed propaganda by biased and sel ective reporting techniques.
They relied on msrepresentation not in the nornmal sense of falsification but
in a clever fabrication of msinformation.

40. Her organi zation called on the Secretary-Ceneral to condemm any use of
mlitary force outside the context of Security Council resolutions; on the
CGeneral Assenbly to find ways of enhancing the effectiveness of the

Security Council and mitigating its paralysis by the veto; on the
Secretary-Ceneral and the General Assenmbly to pronote application of the

cl auses of the Charter requiring the forwarding of international conflicts to
the International Court of Justice and to establish a United Nations gl oba
satellite channel network in all the official |anguages to provide coverage on
i ssues of concern to the international comunity.

41. Ms. KLEIN (Brahma Kumaris World Spiritual University) said that it was
only when people had a spiritual perspective that they could truly act towards
one another in a spirit of brotherhood as they were urged to do by the

Uni versal Declaration of Human Ri ghts. The human val ues of respect, freedom
and justice had to be brought back into personal, professional and societa
relationships in order to reaffirmthe worth of the individual. Wen that was
done, human rights would be upheld and foll owed naturally as a way of life by
everyone everywhere

42. Ms. FIORE (Human Ri ghts Advocates Inc.) said that no derogation fromthe
articles prohibiting the inposition of the death penalty on juveniles was

al  owed under the International Covenant on Civil and Political Ri ghts or the
Convention on the Rights of the Child. The former had been ratified by the
Islamic Republic of Iran, Nigeria, the United States and Yemen and the |atter
by the Islam c Republic of Iran, N geria, Pakistan, Saudi Arabia and Yenen,
all of which were thus violating their treaty obligations. The Conm ssion
NGOs and religious bodies had for years been trying to halt the abhorrent
practice of executing juveniles and, instead of issuing |ast-mnute appeals,
the international community should seek to prevent countries from sentencing
juveniles to death.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 10

43. The Commi ssion should call upon the authorities of the countries she had
mentioned to conply with their international treaty obligations and request
themto report on action to educate their public on the prohibition of the
juvenil e death penalty under those treaties; request all States to cooperate
fully with the Special Rapporteur on extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary
executions; urge Pakistan and Saudi Arabia to ratify the Internationa

Covenant on Civil and Political Rights; and urge the United States of Anmerica
to revoke its reservation to article 6 of the International Covenant on Civi
and Political Rights and to ratify the Second Optional Protocol thereto and
the Convention on the Rights of the Child wi thout any reservations.

44 Ms. RI CUPERO (Center for Justice and International Law), speaking al so
on behalf of Amesty International, Human Ri ghts Watch, Interights, the

I nternational Comm ssion of Jurists and the Lawers Conmittee for Human

Ri ghts, said she noted with concern that a nunber of States had recently

wi t hdrawn from or entered reservations to key human rights treaties. |n 1998,
Jamai ca had withdrawn fromthe Optional Protocol to the International Covenant
on Civil and Political Rights and Trinidad and Tobago had announced its

wi t hdrawal from the Anerican Convention on Human Rights. |In both cases, the
stated purpose was to facilitate the use of the death penalty. Trinidad and
Tobago and Guyana had w thdrawn from and re-acceded to the Optional Protocol
wWith reservations barring the Human Rights Committee from consi dering

comuni cations from persons sentenced to death. By extension, that precluded
consi deration of any conplaint even indirectly connected with a capital case,
such as denial of access to | egal counsel or inhumane treatnent in prison

45, O her States mght be encouraged by such noves to enter reservations
seeking to bar comuni cations regardi ng allegations concerning torture or the
right to a fair trial, reservations which would render the individual petition
system meani ngl ess. There were al so strong reasons to believe that such
reservations were legally invalid, since the Vienna Convention on the Law of
Treaties provided that reservati ons nmust be conpatible with the object and
purpose of a treaty and the Human Rights Commttee's General Conment No. 24
stated that a reservation that significantly inpaired the Conmttee's
conpetence to hear communi cations was inconmpatible with the object and purpose
of the Optional Protocol

46. The Comm ssion should urge Trinidad and Tobago and Guyana to w thdraw
their reservations and Jamaica to re-accede to the Optional Protocol
reiterate its appeal to all States to ratify human rights treaties w thout
reservations; urge other States to refrain from making simlar reservations
and call on the States parties to the Covenant on Civil and Political Rights
to object formally to any inconpatible reservations.

47. Her statenent was al so supported by a nunber of Caribbean human rights
associ ati ons.

48. Ms. RODRI GUEZ (International Service for Human Ri ghts), speaking al so on
behal f of the International Comm ssion of Jurists, the Lawers Conmittee for
Human Ri ghts, the Association for the Prevention of Torture, the Baha'

I nternational Community, the International Federation of Action of Christians
for the Abolition of Torture and Amesty International, said that the recently
adopted Decl aration on the Right and Responsibility of Individuals, G oups and




E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 11

Organs of Society to Pronote and Protect Universally Recogni zed Human Ri ghts
and Fundanental Freedons provided a yardstick for a new United Nations
mechanismto deal with the question of human rights defenders.

49. The existing thematic and country mechani sms did not cover all the
issues relating to the free and effective functioning of human rights

def enders such as their right to freedom of association and nmovenent. They
woul d be unable to provide a conprehensive review of inplementation of the
Decl arati on or to undertake adequate investigations of individual cases. A
speci al rapporteur on human rights defenders would be able to el aborate a
conceptual approach to the review of inplementation, devel op a nmethodol ogy for
i nvestigations of individual cases, oversee technical assistance provided by
OHCHR and make recomendations to the Commi ssion. She therefore requested al
the menbers of the Comm ssion to support the appointnent of such a specia
rapporteur.

50. M. KHAN (World Federation of Trade Unions) said his organization was
concerned at the fact that a nunmber of countries had not yet ratified the six
core United Nations human rights treaties. About 30 per cent of Member States
had failed to ratify the two International Covenants on Human Rights. It was
par adoxi cal that sone States that had been making all egations regardi ng human
rights violations by other Governnents and calling for inquiries and other
action by the Conm ssion had nevertheless failed to accede to basic human
rights instrunents. Pakistan, for exanple, had not yet signed either of the
two Covenants. Such Governnents showed a |ack of political will to honour
their human rights obligations and sought to use human rights to

i nternationalize bilateral issues.

51. He urged the Conmi ssion to inpress upon all States that had not yet
become parties to the Covenants the desirability of doing so before the end of
the century, so that the world could begin the twenty-first century with
renewed hope that human dignity woul d be respected.

52. M . FRANCO (Movenent agai nst Raci sm and for Friendship anmong Peopl es)
said that, speaking as a Swiss citizen who had performed his mlitary service
but also on behalf of 1,400 human rights defenders, he appealed to the
authorities of the Canton of Geneva to dismantle the excessively tight
security cordon placed around the prenmi ses of the United Nations O fice there.

53. Speaki ng al so on behalf of the Centre Europe-Tiers Mnde, he said that
the prime victinms of the reign of terror in Myanmar were human rights
defenders, particularly representatives of and synpathizers with the Nationa
League for Denocracy. Insufficient attention had also been paid to the plight
of the Kurdish people and their human rights defenders in the Syrian Arab
Republ i c and Turkey. Human rights defenders in Turkey were repressed under
the Constitution inherited fromthe 1982 nmlitary coup d' état. Dozens of

of fices of the Human Ri ghts Association (IHD) had been closed down and many
human rights defenders had been tried and inprisoned by the State Security
Court.

54, Ms. GOSTEN (Movenent agai nst Raci sm and for Friendship anmong Peopl es),
speaki ng al so on behal f of Centre Europe - Tiers Monde, said that in 1988, at
| east 25,000 Kurdish civilians in the town of Halabja in northern Irag had



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 12

been killed by chem cal and bi ol ogi cal weapons and nore than 250, 000 had been
directly exposed to their effects. She had visited the town ten years |ater
and had been horrified at the continuing plight of isolated and inaccessible
victinms of a conbination of international and internal enbargoes and the
repressive policies of the lraqi reginme. The Comm ssion had failed to condem
the Iragi action against Halabja in 1998 and the Governnment of Iraq was stil
pursuing a policy of mass displacenent of Kurds fromoil-rich areas.

55. M. FINUCANE (I nternational League for Human Ri ghts) said that attacks
on human rights defenders throughout the world were becom ng increasingly
frequent. In sone cases, they were carried out in an institutionalized manner
with full inpunity and official State sanction. Hs father, the | awer
Patri ck Finucane, had been murdered in Northern Ireland in 1989 by a |oyali st
terrorist organization and his friend and col | eague, the |awer

Rosemary Nel son, had recently been murdered under simlar circunstances. Both
had vi gorously defended the human rights of their clients and had been i npeded
and subjected to intimdation by the Royal U ster Constabulary (RUC), whose

of ficers enjoyed inpunity vis-a-vis their superiors and the State. |In the
case of M. Finucane, evidence suggested that a State agent had known that he
was to be murdered but had taken no steps to protect him

56. The Speci al Rapporteur on the i ndependence of judges and | awers had

i nvestigated the issue in 1997 and had recommended in his report to the
current session of the Conm ssion (E/CN. 4/1999/60) that a full inquiry should
be undertaken into allegations of official collusion in the nmurder of

M. Finucane. The Conmi ssion should urge the United Kingdomto bring to |ight
all the facts surrounding the nurder of the two human rights defenders and to
ratify all international instruments providing protection for the role and
wor k of such individuals.

57. M. PERERA (Wrld Federation of United Nations Associations) said that
he was greatly inpressed by the information and educati on programes carried
out jointly by OHCHR and the United Nations Information Service, with nmeagre
funds and a |linmted staff. The programes, which targeted all age groups and
treated the human rights instrunents as an indivisible whole, had made a
significant contribution to the pronotion of human rights awareness.
Governments and NGOs should turn their work to account. Concrete progranmes
for the teaching profession should be established and i nplemented with the
assi stance of teachers' organizations; organizations canpaigning for specific
human rights should place themin the context of the other rights protected by
i nternational instrunments; and religious bodies and the nmedia could al so play
a key role in generating awareness.

58. He stressed the need to adopt a holistic approach to the inpact of

sci ence and technol ogy on human rights, since a pieceneal approach clouded the
i ssue and thwarted effective action. Medical science had made vast strides
but al so enabled its practitioners to treat human bei ngs as objects. Methods
of torture had been “refined” to induce pain wthout |eaving scars. Ancetine
had been used to condition the aggressive inmpul ses of prisoners and
anphet am nes had been admini stered to thousands of school children di agnosed as
mentally ill. The Conm ssion nmust take steps to prevent science and
technol ogy from making the Universal Declaration of Human Rights a dead
letter.



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 13

59. Ms. LOZIDOU (I nternational Federation for the Protection of the Rights
of Ethnic, Religious, Linguistic and Oher Mnorities) said that, in 1989

she had filed an application against Turkey with the European Comm ssion on
Human Ri ghts concerning deprivation of the peaceful use of her property at
Kyrenia in northern Cyprus. In three judgenents delivered in 1995, 1996 and
1998, the Court had found that she was the | egal owner of the property, that
Turkey was responsible for depriving her of its use and that she was entitled
to conpensation. Turkey had shown no sign either of conplying with the
Court's nmonetary award or of allowi ng her to reoccupy her property. She urged
t he Conmi ssion to take action to ensure that the Court's decisions were

i mpl enent ed.

60. M. PO RET (Association of World Citizens) said he wel coned the

procl amati on by the United Nations of an International Year for the Culture of
Peace in 2000 and an International Decade for a Culture of Peace and
Non- Vi ol ence for the Children of the World from 2001 to 2010. The
establ i shment of such a culture called, however, for a nore acceptable
distribution of wealth between devel oped and devel opi ng countri es and anong

i ndi vi dual s. Vi ol ent video ganes and tel evision series had a direct adverse
i nfl uence on child behavi our and the nmedia had a key role to play in pronoting
a culture of peace for the children of the world. The right to a healthy

envi ronnent was of vital inportance to the present and future generations and
mul ti nati onal conpani es shoul d change their attitude, which was |eading to

i mpoveri shment of the environment.

61. M. MNAUGHTON (Asian Buddhi st Conference for Peace) said that, in 1998,
a human rights pronoter in Chiapas had, after testifying to human rights
violations comritted by the Mexican arny and paramlitary groups before an

i nternati onal comm ssion, been assassinated by the param litary group “Paz y
Justicia” and his body tossed into a river. The group in question had
received a “devel opment grant” worth US$ 500,000 fromthe Mexi can Gover nnment
in 1997. That was but one of innunerable cases in which human rights

def enders had been attacked or threatened and their offices vandalized. The
Government and agencies of the United States of Anmerica were acconplices in
the dirty war being waged by the Governnent of Mexico. He urged that a
speci al rapporteur be appointed to investigate human rights violations in
Mexi co.

62. Turning to the issue of Jammu and Kashmir, he said that, in 1996, a
human rights activist from Srinagar had been arrested and tortured for

three days following his return from Geneva, where he had testified before the
Commi ssion. The security forces had subsequently raided his home, abused his
fam |y and accused him of conspiring to disintegrate India. He thus had

wel | -founded fears of similar treatment on his return to India after attending
t he Conmi ssion's current session

63. Ms. FERRARI (JMJ Children's Fund of Canada, Inc.) said that

some 8 million of the 13 mllion children who died each year could be saved by
provi ding, at very low cost, oral rehydration salts and antibiotics. Farmers
i n devel opi ng countries could double their food production if they received a
fair market price. Tuberculosis could be controlled for a fraction of the
sunms annual ly spent on the research into and treatnent of H V/ AIDS, which
could be eradicated within 10 years if everyone abstained from sexual activity



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 14

outside marriage. Many hospitals in devel oping countries | acked surgica

equi prent or medi ci nes but were well supplied with condonms. Abortions could
lead to sterility and an increased |likelihood of breast cancer. The direction
of humani tarian aid should be changed.

64. M. WJ (International Union of Socialist Youth) said that China executed
nor e peopl e than any other country, although the precise nunber was consi dered
a State secret. Ammesty International estimated that the total had been 4, 367
in 1996, or 70 per cent of all executions in the world. Mreover, to
terrorize the general popul ation, executions were held in public. Prisoners
wer e shackl ed and hum |iated by being paraded through the streets. The

Chi nese authorities also harvested human organs from executed prisoners and
sold themfor profit. An end to the death penalty would allow China to join
the forward march of civilization

65. Ms. WESSEL (International Hel sinki Federation for Human Ri ghts) said
that, in many States, human rights defenders encountered intimdation

physi cal violence, abusive surveillance, arbitrary arrest, unfair trial and
restrictions on freedom of movement. They were routinely accused of damagi ng
the image of their State when they reported human rights violations. |In nost
countries of the forner Soviet Union, human rights NGOs had difficulty in
meeting deliberately rigorous registration procedures and were subjected to
police raids, abusive financial controls, illegal confiscation of docunents
and conputers and interference with tel ephone |ines.

66. The Vi ce-President of Serbia had said, as |ong ago as Septemnmber 1998,
that if it proved inpossible to shoot down every NATO pl ane, the Governnent
woul d elimnate a nmore attainable target, donestic traitors such as the

Nati onal Hel sinki Committee. Since the declaration of a state of energency in
that country, human rights work had becone inpossible. Mst representatives
of NGOs and the nedia were interrogated daily and arbitrarily held in prison
An at nosphere of terror reigned.

67. In Belarus, the Mnistry of Justice had issued three warnings to the
Nat i onal Hel sinki Commttee threatening it with closure. The Committee had
been ordered to protect the human rights of its menbers only. The Kyrgyz
Committee for Human Rights had had its registration revoked in 1998 on
procedural grounds, follow ng accusations of financial m smanagenent of funds
fromforeign donors. The real reason seemed to be to prevent the Committee
from observing the Cctober referendum

68. Ms. STOTHARD (Aliran Kesedaran Negara - National Consciousness
Movement ), having urged the nenbers of the Association of South-East Asian
Nati ons (ASEAN) which had not yet done so to ratify the core human rights
treaties, said that the Government of Ml aysia had not matched its | oud
commitnment to human rights overseas with its donestic behaviour. Since no
action had been taken by the police to deal with the surge of human rights

vi ol ati ons over the past six nonths, the Governnment presumably supported them

69. Two human rights defenders had been severely beaten and arrested by the
police the previous week, in both cases not for the first tinme. Both nen had
| odged official conplaints against earlier violations they had suffered and



E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 15

that had probably nade themtargets for even greater abuse. A human rights
def ender who had made a statenent to the Conm ssion 10 days previously had
since been assaulted by a district police chief.

70. A migrant rights advocate had been prosecuted and a nenber of parliament
had been inprisoned for defending an under-aged girl who had all eged sexua
abuse by a political |eader. An academ c had | ost his post when he spoke out
for human rights and, in the case nmentioned by the observer for Ml aysia, the
judge who had found the ruling party guilty of offences had been di sm ssed.
She urged the Conmission to intervene on behal f of Ml aysian human rights
defenders. A first step would be for the police to be given proper human
rights training.

71. Ms. W SEBERG (Human Rights Internet) endorsed the call for the

Commi ssion to establish a special rapporteur on human rights defenders. The
condi tions under which human rights defenders worked had not substantially

i nproved since the 1993 Worl d Conference on Human Ri ghts. Human rights
organi zations faced increasingly sophisticated neasures by Governments to
control their activities, as well as attacks by non-State actors who seened to
be beyond governnment contr ol

72. The Defenders' Summit, held in Paris in Decenber 1998 and attended by
over 300 human rights defenders fromall parts of the world, had heard of nany

and varied attacks on human rights defenders. |In Pakistan, a fatwa had been
procl ai med agai nst two women | awyers for exposing “honour killing” for the
nmurder it actually was. In Colonbia and Guatenala, human rights activists had

received death threats fromparanilitary forces; in Algeria, they just
di sappeared; in China, they were jailed; and in Egypt and Sri Lanka, the
i ndependence of human rights NGOs was underm ned by financial controls.

73. Def enders' rights should be witten into the mandates of all specia
rapporteurs and the relevant treaty bodies but that would not, of itself, be
enough to give the issue the attention it nerited. Many States were
under st andably reluctant to appoint yet another special rapporteur but, if
human rights defenders were not protected, the rights of all were in jeopardy.

74. M. SAFI (World Miuslim Congress) said that, in arnmed conflicts, human
rights defenders were particularly vulnerable. They were detained, tortured
or nurdered; menbers of their famlies were harassed or harned. His own
situation was a case in point. He had been raising the issue of human rights
violations in Indian-occupi ed Jammu and Kashmr before the Commr ssion for
nearly a decade. As a result, his brother-in-law had been burned alive and
his cousin had been shot at. His wife and children had had to | eave their
home. The Conmi ssion should respond to the suffering of human rights

def enders throughout the world and his organi zation strongly supported the
proposal that a special rapporteur should be appointed on that thene:
Governments nust be held accountable for their treatnment of human rights

def enders.

ORGANI ZATI ON OF THE WORK OF THE SESSI ON (agenda item 3) (conti nued)

75. The CHAI RPERSON said that, in accordance with her earlier statenent to
the Comm ssion (E/ CN. 4/1999/ SR 39, paras. 18-21), she wished to nake a ruling
inrelation to the right to raise points of order. The first aspect of her
ruling related to Palestine. In accordance with the advice of the Ofice of




E/ CN. 4/ 1999/ SR. 45
page 16

Legal Affairs in New York, which relied on General Assenbly resolution 52/250
and the acconpanying note by the Secretary-CGeneral contained in docunent

A/ 52/ 1002, her ruling was that the Observer for Palestine had the right in the
Commi ssion to raise points of order relating to Palestinian and M ddl e East

i ssues, provided that the right to raise such a point of order did not include
the right to challenge a decision by the Presiding Oficer.

76. The second aspect of her ruling related to the right of observer
Governnments generally to raise points of order, the matter at issue being the
interpretation to be given to rule 42.1 of the rules of procedure of the
functional commi ssions of the Econom c and Social Council. Like the issue of
Pal estinian rights, the matter had been carefully considered in the Bureau
over the past two weeks and there had been extensive consultation. According
to her understanding, there was a wi despread feeling that, in all the

ci rcunstances, the fair and reasonabl e approach was that observer Governnents
shoul d have the right to raise points of order before the Conm ssion. She
therefore ruled that, for the purposes of article 42.1, the term*“a
representative” was to be interpreted in the Comr ssion on Hunan Rights as
applying both to representatives of menmbers of the Comm ssion and
representatives of Menber States of the United Nations not nenbers of the
Commi ssion on Human Rights but participating in its work in an observer
capacity.

77. Ms. RUBIN (United States of America) said that her del egati on questioned
whet her it was wise for the Comm ssion to cede authority over its own
procedures to the CGeneral Assenbly. The Comr ssion's established practice
precl uded observers, even if they were Menber States of the United Nations,
fromraising procedural points of order or introducing resolutions of their
own accord. That practice was not negated by the General Assenbly resolution
The O fice of Legal Affairs should be asked to reconcile its new opinion with
its prior opinions, indicating that non-nenber States were precluded from
either raising points of order, within the United Nations or the functiona

conmi ssions of the Economic and Social Council, or introducing resolutions.
78. Any change to the Commission's rules or practices required the action of
the Council itself. Only the Council could change its own rules of procedure

or practice, not the General Assenbly.

79. To accord both the Pal estinians and non-nenber States the right to raise
poi nts of order or introduce resolutions would confuse and inpair the work of
the Comm ssion. The resulting inpact needed to be considered systematically
and conprehensively; it should not be decided in the context of the

Pal estinian i ssue alone. Her del egation thus recommended that the issue of
accordi ng enhanced status to any observer be studied, w thout prejudice, and
consi dered at the next session of the Commi ssion, since it was an issue that
woul d significantly change the Conmi ssion's practice and its authority to run
its own house.

80. The CHAI RPERSON sai d she took note of the statement. She was gl ad that
it had taken the formof a statenent and not a challenge to her ruling since,
in the latter event, she would have been obliged to put the matter to a vote.

The neeting rose at 6 p. m




